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SENATOR MARTHA ESCUTIA, CHAIR:  Welcome to the Senate Health Informational Hearing, which was slated upon adjournment of the committee hearing.  And we have an informational hearing on, “The Causes and Effects of Hospital Emergency Room Closures.”  Opening remarks to made by me, but I pass on that.  The person that really knows what’s going on, because it’s happening in her district, is Assemblymember Dion Aroner.


Ms. Aroner.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER DION ARONER:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I really want to express my appreciation for you having this special hearing today.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Well, I just want to make myself very clear, Ms. Aroner, for the record.  We’re going to basically hear the subject matter, and I know we’ll probably have, somehow, a discussion of your bill.  No?


ASSEMBLYMEMBER ARONER:  I thought the agreement with you was that we’d have subject matter.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Because they have here -- it’s identified in my agenda as, AB 421.  I just don’t want to have two hearings on a bill.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER ARONER:  Right.  And that’s what our agreement was, Madam Chair.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  All right.  Fine.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER ARONER:  I think you’re going to get, hopefully, a full, kind of, discussion today from a variety of people around the issues of emergency room closures.  But not in particular, unless you have an answer to my bill, which would be wonderful.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  No.  I’d rather delay discussion on your bill until the moment it is right.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER ARONER:  Exactly.  That was my understanding, as well.  But I really do want you to know that I appreciate you taking the time to do this, this afternoon, on this rather complicated issue, and one that we don’t have all the answers on.  That’s the whole point of having a hearing, is to try to figure out what are the issues we need to look at, and do we have some ideas about how we can resolve them.


We’re here today to look at the problem that the closure and downgrading of hospital emergency rooms has on public health in our communities.  In one of the counties that I represent, Contra Costa County, the proliferation of standby emergency rooms was cited as a key factor in three deaths in recent years.  Even as we speak, I have a hospital -- not in my own district actually -- in Assemblyman Torlakson’s district, Doctor’s Medical Center, where the emergency room is being closed in the city of Pinole.


The Department of Health Services stated that it has no authority to keep the emergency room open.  Despite the Contra County Board of Supervisors findings of an adverse community impact due to increased transport times, delayed fire and ambulance response, and the loss of emergency services following a disaster.  I believe that this is just the beginning of a proliferation of emergency room closures throughout the state.


Two years ago, you might remember, Assemblyman Gallegos carried legislation that required the County Board of Supervisors, or its Emergency Medical Services Authority, to prepare an impact evaluation of a proposed emergency room downgrade or closure.


Last year, I introduced legislation that the chairperson has mentioned, AB 421, which proposes that the impact evaluation concludes the proposed downgrade or closure would have a negative impact on community health, but DHS cannot approve the application.  The bill permits the hospital to appeal that determination to Secretary of Health and Human Services.


As is demonstrated in the Doctor’s Hospital closure in Pinole, there is a need for the local perspective to be injected into the Department of Health Services consideration of applications to close or downgrade an emergency room.  It protects our communities, and it would insure that emergency healthcare will remain available.


Now that AB 421 is going to be before this committee within the next month or so, I’ve committed to a substantive discussion with all of the stakeholders.  The difficult question is, how do we solve, what I believe, is a systemic emergency crisis if it diminishes access to emergency room healthcare in a community?


I think there is common agreement between the stakeholders about the issues that contribute to an emergency room crisis.  First, low medical reimbursement rates, and you’re going to hear about that, I’m sure, today.  Second, high levels of under and under insured patients coming through facilities.  Third, the changing economics of hospitals, moving from non-profit entities to for-profit corporations beholding to their stockholders who then want to consolidate services, which then closes -- that’s why they commence a closure.  And lastly, inadequate reimbursement rates for physicians who provide care in the emergency room.


Many hospitals now look at communities and determine whether or not to continue providing emergency care based on profit margins, more than whether or not a community has a need that must be met.  I believe that the system is already stressed and that additional emergency room closures will further stress our system.


I think you share my concerns; this is a major public healthcare crisis.  I think that’s why we’re having the hearing today.  I’d like to thank you again, for designating this time to have this discussion.  And hopefully, what we’re going to get out of this line of discussion maybe is some solutions that we can impose when we have our discussion regarding AB 421.


I’m hopeful that Assemblyman Torlakson is -- I don’t think Tom is here yet, because I think that he wishes to address you, in particularly regarding what the community that he represents is facing in regards to a closure in his own community.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Well, we’ll take Mr. Torlakson when he comes in.  I think we can continue discussion with the other witnesses.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER ARONER:  And Madam Chair, I hope you’ll excuse me.  I have to go back to Sub-1, where I’m in the middle of a hearing, okay?  But thank you so much for affording us this time, and I look forward to working with you on the bill.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Thank you.  Is Ms. Donna Gerber present?  Ms. Gerber is president of the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors.  And if we can also bring forth Ms. Virginia Hastings.  Please sit down.  Ms. Virginia Hastings, Director of the L.A. County Emergency Medical Services Agency.  All right, Ms. Gerber.


MS. DONNA GERBER:  Thank you.  Good afternoon, Chairwoman Escutia and members of the Senate Committee.  Thank you for your time.  As indicated, I am Donna Gerber.  I am the current chair of the Board of Supervisors in Contra Costa County, and I also sit on the County Supervisors Committee over health.  We run both the hospital and a large clinic system in our county, as is the case with many public agencies.


We have watched, over the past few years, five hospital emergency rooms closing in Contra Costa County, which interestingly is a growing county, not a shrinking county.  We are in a crisis in this county, and we believe that that’s probably true throughout California, and, perhaps, further.


Doctor’s Pinole Hospital has been the poster child for the need for stronger legislation than the Gallegos bill, which we helped support when it was passed a couple of years ago.  The Gallegos bill was set forth in Section 1300 of the Health and Safety Code, and it set requirements for notification of a closure and that the county provide an impact evaluation of the closure.


I want to tell you that a recent experience we had with the closing of Doctor’s Hospital in Pinole which will take place on April 3rd of this year.


Tenet corporation notified the Department of Health Services of their intent to close the Doctor’s Pinole Hospital on November 15, 1999.  By law, the county held a public hearing.  The first, on January 5th, and then another one on January 15th.  Hundreds of people attended these hearings and gave testimony, despite the fact that it was during the Christmas holidays.  There are very strong feelings among the community and healthcare providers, that lives will be lost due to the closure of Doctor’s Pinole Hospital Emergency Room.  The impact evaluation by Contra Costa County Emergency Medical Services was a very thorough review of the impacts.  Here is the 160-page report that was made on the impact evaluation, even though we only had about 60 days to do it.  The conclusion is a very strong recommendation not to close Doctor’s Hospital in Pinole, and to not consolidate services in their other facility which is in San Pablo, about 15 miles away.  The county health officer was also strongly against the closure.  The Board of Supervisors was against the closure.  Why?  Longer transport times to the hospital, thus endangering lives.  Delayed fire and ambulance responses.  Loss of critical care bed capacity which impacts on emergency department capacity.  Potential loss of hospital emergency services to several communities following a major earthquake as predicted for the northern Hayward faults.  Loss of immediately available emergency services for convalescent and assisted living facilities that had built their facilities near Doctor’s Hospital in Pinole for that reason.  And increased waiting time in the emergency room at the other facility in San Pablo.


After this extensive impact evaluation, we soon heard what we expected.  The State Department of Health Services does not have the authority to tell a private company that it must provide emergency services.  Nor can the Department require mitigation to reduce the impacts, such as requiring San Pablo Hospital build the fourteen intensive care unit beds lost from Pinole before closing Pinole Hospital.


Contra Costa County exemplifies what has been playing out in California healthcare for the past decade.  When profits came from hospital stays generated by emergency room visits, healthcare companies built hospitals everywhere, usually with public dollars.  Now that profits are based on gate keeping and controlling access to hospital in-patient care, healthcare companies are reducing the supply of hospital beds and emergency rooms.  Healthcare is a public service with life and death consequences.  The marketplace playing field must be level enough to provide these necessary services, especially when about 70 cents of every healthcare dollar is public money.


I urge you to help find us a way to give hospitals financial incentives or other kinds of incentives to provide the emergency room services that is needed.

What this is really about is preventing the deaths of a seven-year old, from my district, who died of an infection, a treatable infection, after being in a crowded emergency room for more than ten hours waiting for a bed in an overcrowded hospital.  When one considers this child, the success of your deliberations are vitally important to families in Contra Costa County and throughout the state.  Thank you very much, and I’m happy to answer any questions you might have.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Thank you.  Our next witness.  Ms. Hastings.


MS. VIRGINIA HASTINGS:  Thank you for inviting us here today.  I’m Virginia Hastings.  I’m Director of the Emergency Medical Services Agency in Los Angeles County.  For purposes of my discussion before you, I will be talking specifically about general acute care hospitals that maintain a basic emergency department as issued by the State Department of Health Services.  And one of the key requirements of that basic permit is that a physician be on duty 24-hours a day.  Additionally, paramedic regulations require that in most instances, paramedics transport to only hospitals that operate a basic emergency department permit.


It’s important to remember, again, as I think has been stated, there are no mandates that a hospital acquire, or maintain a basic, or comprehensive, emergency department permit.  If it elects to maintain an emergency department, there are a number of requirements including maintaining physician call panels.  However, there are no requirements that physicians serve on call panels.  Most of them are in private practice, and the problem with maintaining call panels has been alluded to earlier, and I’m sure you’ll hear more about it.


In 1983, in Los Angeles County, we had 102 hospitals with basic emergency departments.  Today we have 82 to provide services to our 

9.4 million population plus millions of visitors each year.


In 1985, we had 83 trauma centers.  Today, we have 13.  We have large portions of the population uncovered with trauma care.


Our 911 system responds to approximately 475,000 incidents a year, and those result in 370,000 transports.  Additionally, there are approximately 1,954,000 patients who walk into emergency departments for a combined total visit in these 82 emergency departments of 2,324,418 patients.  The walk-in volume is self-reported by hospitals because as I understand it, there’s no requirement to report your total walk-in volume to a lead agency.


In the late ‘80s, hospitals began down-licensing from basic to standby, essentially eliminating all 911 traffic from their doors.  The hospitals closed or downgraded, citing high numbers of uninsured patients and high patient volumes which threatened the financial viability of the hospital.  And, perhaps, more importantly, we’ve learned, stretch the willingness of specialty physicians to serve on call panels.


The infusion of the county’s Prop. 99 dollars to pay hospitals and physicians for indigent care prevented more hospitals from closing.  And in fact, since Prop. 99 became available to Los Angeles County, no trauma center has withdrawn.


The Board of Supervisors has consistently, since the funds became available in 1990, appropriated its Prop. 99 discretionary dollars to pay for hospital and physician care at trauma centers.  Due to the recent decline in the availability of Prop. 99 however, our trauma center system is again at risk.


Well, what happens when a hospital shuts down, or closes its emergency department, or down-licenses, no matter what the term is?  The calls to 911 don’t go down.  In fact, they’ve not gone down over the years, despite the promise that they probably would as a result of managed care.  The walk-ins don’t decrease.  There are not fewer care wrecks.  There are no fewer children.  The patient volume does not decrease in any way.  Here’s what really happens.


We move ambulances.  We tell them to go to the next closest basic emergency department.  The additional patients become a burden in terms of demand upon that hospital’s resources, and demands upon the physicians voluntarily serving on call panels.  The influx of patients often disrupts the next closest hospital’s financial stability by a result of changing the pair mix.  Emergency ambulance transport times increase, and that was eluded to earlier.  Response times to the next incoming 911 call may increase.  They’re delayed because the paramedic is out of service with a previous patient going to a more distant hospital.  Hospital requests to go on diversion increased dramatically.  Emergency providers must often add resources to meet response standards demanded of them by the public, by good medical practice and by MS Agency standards.  The next closest hospital and its medical staff then sit down and analyze whether to keep their emergency department open.  We have a classic domino going when this occurs.  We had such a problem in the late 80s that we drew rigid 911 boundaries around seven of our hospitals to ensure that we could manage the volume of patients and keep the medical staff on board.  Those rigid boundaries remain in place today, trying to manage the volume and keep the hospitals open.


In more recent years, I believe hospital emergency department closures have been the result of the financial mandates placed upon hospitals and the hospital industry to become more efficient, and in many cases, profitable.  Closures and down-licensing, I believe, have been largely the result of the financial mandates placed upon hospitals and the hospital industry to become more efficient, and in many cases, profitable.  Closures and down-licensing, I believe, have been largely the result of mergers, consolidation of services and programs.  I predict, based upon my 20 years in EMS, that additional closures are very likely to occur because of the growing dissatisfaction among physicians serving on call panels, many of whom are no longer willing at all to serve on call panels.  Some physicians are demanding exorbitant fees to serve on call panels, therefore, increasing the cost to hospitals.  Specialty call panels have become such a major issue that two separate studies have been completed and I will be glad to make those available; one, conducted by the California Medical Association, the California Association of Emergency Physician, and a more recent one conducted by the National Health Foundation entitled, “On Call Physician Coverage Study.”


Well, the motives behind hospital closures may be understandable from the business sense, the threat to the emergency medical service system presents a major health threat to all of us.  One less hospital resource translates into increased demand at the next closest hospital, and to the physicians at that hospital, again, who are under no mandate currently, to have emergency services.


You heard earlier, references have been made to the Gallegos bill, AB 2103, which was a major step forward.  It mandated that hospitals provide proper notification when they were going to close.  Prior to that bill, some hospitals would just close on a Friday night and you wouldn’t hear about it until the next day.  So, it’s been a step forward, however, the quandary that we now find ourselves in with Gallegos, which is a step forward and well intended, is that once a hospital provides the proper notification, it begins loosing its staff.  They begin looking for other jobs, and the physicians move their patients, and the hospital is just a building, so once the staff is gone, the notification is moot.  It really has no bearing on anything, and it hasn’t served us well in some instances.


In evaluating the impact of the closure of a hospital or emergency department, or even, in fact, the closure of a special service within a hospital, several criteria have to be considered -- the location, the number of patients, including the walk-ins.  Is it a paramedic base hospital?  Is it a trauma center?  Does the hospital provide critical services that may not be available within a reasonable distance elsewhere?  For example, burn beds, pediatric critical care beds, neurosurgery beds.  Currently, of our 82 hospitals, a rough estimate, 25 provide absolutely no neurosurgical services at all.  Does it have psychiatry services?  Can it issue a 5150 hold?  Does it have a neonatal ICU?  There are many variables to be considered in providing a good healthcare system.  And what are their demands upon the 911 resources?  What are the resources of the 911 providers?  The recent closure -- recent, two or three years ago -- our fire department had two extra ambulances.  In fact, we now try to transport into other counties.  Since there is really no way to currently keep a hospital from closing, in Los Angeles County, and with the assistance with our commissioners and our healthcare association, we quantify the value of each remaining hospital to us from an EMS perspective.  We actually assigned points so that we, in fact, would not cry wolf every time one of them intended to close because we knew we could expect more closures, and we have actually ranked them 1 - 82.

The question becomes, of course, what happens when one of those that we consider critical tells us that it’s going to close?  Frankly, we don’t know.  We have no clout.  No one has any clout right now to require them to stay open.  If we move many of our patients to the next closest hospital, without a doubt the next closest hospital will close.  We’re facing a major public health crisis in the delivery of emergency medical services.  Emergency Medical Services is a service, a program, that every single one of us count on and depend upon.  It’s probably the one remaining thing in healthcare that the public has faith in, that’s its paramedic and its emergency department.  I’ve used it myself, and I’m well insured.

And I don’t have the answers.  I have a lot of opinions, which no one wants right now, but I don’t have the answers.  But I’m hopeful that by publicly addressing these issues before our legislature, we can begin to give some attention to this crisis.  Thank you.


SENATOR JOHN VASCONCELLOS:  So if I may, what three things would you do if you were God?  What three answers?


MS. HASTINGS:  I would pay hospitals appropriately.  I would pay physicians appropriately.  I would require that they stay open in some manner based upon an evaluation of a county’s resources and what it needs to meet the needs of its public.  I believe that one of the biggest problems with emergency services right now, and with hospitals is the dissatisfaction among the physicians.  Dissatisfaction from all pay/or sources.  This is simply not just an indigent problem.  It’s all pay/or sources that are leading to the dissatisfaction among physicians.  And a hospital is not a hospital without the physician.


SENATOR VASCONCELLOS:  Okay.  Thank you.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  I have a question.  In L.A. County we have made an effort to go towards out-patient services.  Do you think, being from L.A. County, that our efforts going towards out-patient has that somehow reduced the need of the uninsureds bottling up the emergency rooms?


MS. HASTINGS:  We have not seen the emergency department call volume go down at all over the last few years.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Okay.


SENATOR HILDA SOLIS:  Madam Chair, is it possible to get the listing you’re talking about?  The ranking that you have?  The 82, and the numbering system.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Yes.


SENATOR SOLIS:  Because I’m concerned in my own district.  We have several private hospitals, and we have Tenet, that is obviously a big player out in Los Angeles.  And we have several issues that have been brought before us, as a legislature, regarding staffing just about everything, so I’m deeply concerned.  This is an issue that I know in L.A. County, the nearest trauma center is USC Med Center, and I represent a district that spans almost 20 miles away from that med center, and obviously the costs are very high, and what have you, and we’re looking, trying to look at, different models of how to expand assistance emergency basis even out in parts of the districts in Baldwin Park, as an example.  There was talk about acquiring a facility in Baldwin Park that might be available that would help provide some assistance.  But we’re having difficulty with the Board of Supervisors there because they want to contain the bed space there.  And yet, you’re telling me that nothing indicates that we’re going in the direction of decreasing need continues to be an issue in ratcheting up and not down.  So, I would hope that the Board of Supervisors would work with us also on trying to look at alternatives, as well.  So this one regarding Baldwin Park is very important, and I bring it up because I know that there is a big need in my area, in my district that I represent.  And I’m just alarmed with what is going on in terms of access to healthcare in our district.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Thank you, Ms. Solis.  We now have Assemblymember Tom Torlakson here.  So, Assemblymember, welcome, and I know that you have some comments to make with regard to the county perspective, especially your county.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER TOM TORLAKSON:  Thank you, Madam Chair and members of the committee.  I really appreciate the Senate Health Committee having this hearing, and I don’t want to repeat remarks made by my colleague, Dion Aroner, who was here earlier, or Donna Gerber, who has well spoken to Contra Costa’s particular needs in one area.  But I think the needs in the west county, that follow the announcement of a closure of an emergency room, fit in with the sense of alarm that the committee is expressing that I share, that we have to do something more than what the current status quo operations are.  We don’t really have a system that’s working.  We give the counties responsibility to do emergency medical care planning and set up emergency medical care response system, yet we give them no ability to veto closures that may create a huge gap in that service that has been well planned and thought out.  And how do these closures affect?  Do they just proportionately affect communities that have less economic resources?  Have more underprivileged or uninsured individuals?  I think the answer is, yes.  We should have some kind of standard of medical emergency care system, just like we say, “Well, everybody should have 911.”  Well, we should have everywhere, some kind of basic standard of emergency medical care, and where a closure will puncture that standard, or diminish that standard, have a way of forcing the situation to a point where we fill the gap.  And how do we do that between public and private resources?  Working with the counties we’re closer to the situation, I think, would be one answer, to give them more authority, as the Aroner bill suggests.  So I just want to add my voice to those who are expressing concerns.  I believe that we will have deaths as a result of this emergency room closure.  Can we have a system even in our exploration with the Department of Health Services, we don’t even now have a system that allows for the assurance that other backup systems are in place once a closure is announced, and when the closure would occur, and when any backup system -- there’s been assertions that backup -- medical surgery beds, ICU beds, would be in place at an alternative site.  Well are they going to be in place on time?  Will they be set up?  Will they be ready?  The answer seems very doubtful, and apparently our Health Services Department doesn’t now have the authority to hold up the closure of one facility, such as an emergency room, even when that might create a gap, to have some kind of backup system that would be somewhat helpful in terms of filling the gap, assured and in place.  So I believe that we have a system that is not working, and urge your further consideration of legislation and financial steps that could shore it up.  Thank you.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Thank you, Mr. Torlakson.  I’m reading, right here, through some documents that were prepared by committee staff -- and even assuming that we were to give the counties more authority in terms of determining the approval or non-approval -- the veto authority over these closures, I’m not sure whether that is the answer to what I see could be very much a structural problem within this issue, and that is number-one, which I think Ms. Hastings eluded to.  We have a shortage of on-call physicians.  We have a shortage of nurses, and since the business of hospitals, in addition to providing, obviously, a valuable public health service, is also a business, so they have to engage in some type of a profit margin.  How is it going through the route established by AB 421 -- how is that going to make more physicians on-call, or how is that going to address the issue of shortage of nurses?  I pose that for any of you to answer.


MS. HASTINGS:  Well, I don’t have an answer to that.  It’s not an easy one to answer.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Okay.  Not to diminish the value of AB 421, I think it’s valuable, but I think we have to have another parallel track solution in order to do this systemically, and not do just little things, and little things there, so that in a couple of years you guys come back and say, “You know what, even though we have county authority, it’s still not the answer.”  So I pose that to you as a challenge so that between now and when AB 421 comes before this committee, we start thinking in broad strokes, and start thinking about, what can we do about this?  How do we incentivize, put those incentives, say on physicians, to consider this part of their obligation?  I think, frankly, it’s a moral obligation, an ethical obligation to be available, but for some reason, they don’t think that’s the case.  They’re just not showing up.


MS. GERBER:  Madam Chair, if I may, I think you’re right, and I think those of us at the local level -- the County Board of Supervisors piece of what we’re talking about is really -- because we discovered, going through this with several hospitals over several years, that we’re on the ground floor, and it’s not that we wouldn’t -- I’d be happy to have some other entity be 

involved in this judgement and decision making, frankly.  The problem is, right now, no one is in charge, in reality.  And, the truth is, you really have to be, kind of, on the ground floor at a local level.  Ms. Hastings runs the EMS system in L.A. County.  We have someone in Contra Costa County that runs our EMS system.  We know -- through that activity, we are basically the ones who have the understandings of the interconnectedness of this system and what it would take to make it work, and also, what happens when you start to unravel it.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  I understand that.  I guess what I’m saying is, that we have to go beyond that.  What we have to do is have discussions with the managed care plans which probably have some type of financial arrangements as to what is it in their contractual clauses that allows a doctor to be on-call all the type, only part of the time.  So frankly, we’re missing that piece right now.  We’re missing a piece as to -- obviously the doctors to figure out what are their concerns under a managed care system that prevent them from being on-call in an emergency situation?  We need to obviously talk to the hospitals -- and I know we’re going to have one of their witnesses come forward soon.


MS. GERBER:  I agree with you, and I think our hope was that as this bill moves through the Senate, that we could utilize everybody’s help on this in terms of coming up with the additional pieces that I think have to go along with somebody having some

(TAPE TURNED OVER -- BLANK TIME)


The economics are such that it is partially emergency room physicians and they’re unhappiness with the system, it’s also about, however, hospitals and HMOs essentially not wanting to let people into the rest of the hospital because the way they traditionally come in is through the emergency room.  And so it becomes very economic and the economic piece is definitely part of the solution.  And I think our hope was, that as we had this discussion and could begin to look at in a more problem solving way, we could come up with some ideas, and I know our staff has been meeting with -- we have financial experts on our staff in the county, and I think most counties do, because we deal with these incredible funding issues all of the time -- so that we will be able, I think, to suggest some specific funding stream proposals to try to address some of the economics that are driving this situation.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Thank you.  I’m going to the next panel.  The next panel is the registered nurse perspective.  Is Ms. Nancy Casazza available?  And then, Nancy McCoy.


MS. NANCY CASAZZA:  Thank you, Madam Chair and members of the members of the Senate, for giving us this opportunity to speak out.  Before I start, I don’t know if anyone mentioned this, but there was a task force, and I have the result of it.  The Potential Solutions to the Lack of Physician Backup in Hospital Emergency Departments, was a task force commissioned by the EMS Commission, and I can make that available to you, where we talk about the lack of payment, increased liability.  Because of a vicious cycle, more doctors and nurses are being made to see more and more patients.  The liability increases and we’re being driven out of the ER just to save their sanity.


I’m Nancy Casazza.  I’m Board of Director of California Nurses Association, and an ER nurse, and a Pinole resident, and I was going to give you a brief overview of the problem with the lack of ER access.  We also have Debra Burger, who is treasurer of the California Nurses Association, and she would like to speak about the two hospitals in her area which closed recently.  And Nancy McCoy, who is a nurse at Doctor’s Pinole, so she’ll speak specifically about Doctor’s Pinole.


The lack of ER access is a national issue.  In California, we are not  leading the way.  And it has been documented that there -- it’s because of the vast penetration of managed care and the ensuing problems.  California has fewer hospitals, has fewer healthcare employees, has fewer registered nurses per capita, compared to the rest of the nation, and Contra Costa has the lowest numbers.  Add to that, the ongoing closures of ERs and potential for disasters in our densely populated state, we experience a public health and safety risk.

In L. A. County, and I’m sure you know that in the mid 80s there were 102 ERs, now there are 81.  In the Bay Area, in the mid 80s, there were 34 basic ERs, today there are 20, and soon to be 19, with the eminent closure of Doctor’s, and may even go to 18 if Kaiser up and closes.  In that same timeframe there has been an increase in population of one-half million people, so it’s not a very good balance.  Also, Tenet refuses to give the people of Pinole, and our area, a guarantee that they will remain open and so we’re facing the risk of a possible closure of Tenet's San Pablo campus, as well.  Other ERs are closing.  I have just received a fax that Scripps, in El Cajon, is closing as we speak.  Other ERs in our area, Mount Zion in San Francisco, closed last year.  San Jose Medical Center closed last year.  The ERs closed.  And we all are bearing the brunt of cost shifting by healthcare corporations.  For example, in Pinole, the city of Pinole has to come up with enough money to increase the number of ambulances by three to cover for the time that the others are doing transports.  One ER doesn’t close in a vacuum, other ERs must absorb the volume.  And on a personal note, I’d just like to say, I am embarrassed to be delivering nursing care in hallways and to start every shift knowing that I have to give apologies to my ER patients that there are not beds, no available ER beds in the hospital.  (inaudible tape) Closing ERs may make good corporate business sense, but we knew instinctively, without the statistics, that it’s really not good for the people that we serve.  Thank you.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  I agree with everything that you’ve said, but I still need an answer to try and figure out how do we provide the financial incentives for those doctors to be on-call?  And I think that is one of the unanswered questions here, because I don’t understand that either.  I don’t understand the financing or the mechanisms of managed care.  And I know that these plans vary from plan to plan, but I think there has to be some type of discussion with the doctors and the managed care plans to figure out that as they are negotiating that relationship between a doctor and the plan, that the incentives are there.  And I hate to say this, the incentives tend to be financial -- money seems to drive a lot of people’s behavior around here -- we have to figure out that those incentives are in place so that, in fact, we don’t have a shortage of the ER docs, say for example, or other specialties, because they say, “Well, why am I going to show up if I’m not going to get reimbursed?”  Or, “Why am I going to show up if my reimbursement rate is so low?”  “Oh yeah, I’ll show up, but let them wait for eight or nine hours.”  That is still a question that is not answered, and I don’t see that answered in the AB 421 bill.  So, I’m giving you warning, so that you have, like, maybe a month before the bill comes to the committee, you have to figure out a systemic solution, not just a partial solution.


The next witness.


MS. DEBRA BERGER:  My name is Debra Berger.  I’m a staff nurse.  I’ve been a staff nurse for 26 years.  I’m also a member of a small community, and I would like to acknowledge the community that did come with us today to help the California Nurses Association, and that is the Contra Costa Interfaith Sponsoring Committee.  It’s a group of 30 congregations that represent 35,000 families in the Bay Area.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Thank you for coming.  Are they in the audience?


MS. BERGER:  They are.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Thank you.


MS. BERGER:  And without their help we can’t bring to your committee our sense of public urgency, not just as a staff nurse, but the public as well.  The reason I would like to speak, just very shortly, is that there are two community hospitals in our area, in Sonoma County, that have the potential to be closed; Healdsburg General Hospital in Healdsburg, and Palm Drive Hospital in Sebastopol.  Those were bought up by Columbia with the hope that they would also own the community hospital in Santa Rosa, which they did not -- were not successful in purchasing.  What ended up happening, however, was Columbia very quickly lost interest in our small little communities, and very quickly told the community we are closing your hospital.  There was no discussion.  It was, “Oh, by the way, this is exactly what’s happening, and you’ll seek your care elsewhere.”  There was no provisions for a smooth transfer.  What ended up happening in our community, however, was that we were able to organize several community groups to purchase both the Healdsburg General Hospital through a minor healthcare organization, and through a very successful fundraising drive for the Sebastopol/Sonoma County area to keep Palm Drive open.  We were very, very fortunate in that our community is enjoyed by a number of well-off families, and we were able to save our hospitals.  Other communities like Richmond, Oakland, Martinez, are not as fortunate to be able to do that kind of thing.  And the reason I am here is to speak to you on behalf of the people that don’t have that same kind of power to come up with these kinds of ways of saving their community hospital, which we think are very, very important.  And I would ask you to please consider, and please help us come up with a way to prevent ER closures from happening because it is what is a community resource.  And it’s not just a community in L.A., or a community in Sacramento, or San Francisco, what ends up happening is people go on vacation, they end up having a major trauma that they do need to have taken care of in a place that is distant and foreign with no familiar face to care for them, and we need to have an emergency room open with people like Nancy, that are there to care our loved ones when we can’t.  Thank you.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Thank you so much.  Next witness.


MS. NANCY MCCOY:  Good afternoon committee members.  My name is Nancy McCoy.  I am a registered nurse, a CNA member and employed by Doctor’s Medical Center in Pinole, where I work in their Intensive Care Unit as a staff nurse and a relief charge nurse.  Tenet Healthcare, the corporate parent for Doctor’s Medical Center, is planning on closing acute care services at their Pinole campus on April 3.  This means there will be no emergency room, intensive care, in-patient surgery, or in-patient acute care available.  All these services will be transferred to the sister campus at San Pablo.  About four-and-a-half miles away, but a half-hour drive during rush hour.   We expect that all Pinole RNs will continue their employment with the hospital.  I make this point so that when you hear us advocating to keep the services open, you know that it’s not just because we’re protecting our jobs.  We’re advocating for our patients and our community.


Tenet Healthcare owns and operates 113 acute care hospitals and 18 specialty hospitals in 17 states.  Of these, 43 hospitals are in California.  Tenet lists total assets at nearly $14 billion, revenues of $10.8 billion and net income for 1999 was $249 million.  Tenet operates the Doctor’s Medical Center Hospital at a profit.  In 1998, pre-tax income from the Pinole campus was $6.1 million, and from San Pablo it was $6.6 million.  The Pinole campus is located in western Contra Costa County.  West County accounts for some 24.6 percent of the county’s nearly one-million population.  The communities of West Contra Costa County lie along Interstate 80 Corridor which runs into Carquinez Bridge, north, to the communities of Crocket, Rodeo, Hercules, Pinole, El Sobrante, San Pablo, Richmond and El Torrito, before continuing to Alameda County into the San Francisco/Oakland Bay Bridge.  This section of I-80 is one of the busiest traffic ___ (inaudible) ___

In the first place, Tenet had not done required public education to ensure that people are aware there will be no emergency services at the campus.  I’m a patient at Pinole Medical Group, and I received no information at all.  This is due to happen in two weeks.  Their recent ad in the newspaper about their new urgency room doesn’t even say that the emergency room is closing.  They just imply that there is going to be more services at the campus.


Secondly, West Contra Costa County does not have an adequate number critical beds even now.  With this closure, the number of ICU beds available will be decreased from 44 to 23, a reduction of 47 percent.

In December, __(inaudible) __ and hire more paramedics.  The EMS report suggests that there will be an increased use of 911 calls due to patients who are currently driven by their family to the Pinole Emergency Room, but will instead call an ambulance to get to San Pablo.

Pinole has planned its development around the presence of a hospital.  A good example is the Bay Park Retirement Community that serves as a residence for our elders which chose its location for the close proximity to the hospital.  There are other nearby assisted living facilities for elders and those suffering from Alzheimer or other diseases who will now lose the security of a nearby ER.

Fourthly, if Tenet closes the Pinole Emergency Room before the Kaiser Richmond ER is upgraded from standby to basic, there will be one full-service emergency room between Vallejo and Berkeley.

SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Let me stop you right there.  When will this upgrade from standby to basic expected?

MS. MCCOY:  My understanding is they’re having trouble getting specialty physicians to cover.  It was supposed to be March, and then it was supposed to be April.  I’m hearing rumors of May.  It’s not definite yet.

SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Okay.

MS. MCCOY:  When there was a fire at the San Pablo Campus of Doctor’s Medical Center recently, the Emergency Department diverted all incoming patients to Pinole.  The San Pablo Campus is an aging hospital in need of a substantial seismic retrofit, and most of the hospital doesn’t even have a sprinkler system in it.  The odds of an internal or external disaster closing or overwhelming the San Pablo Emergency Room are high.  What will we do when Pinole is closed?

Tenet has refused to commit to keeping the San Pablo Hospital open.  When asked about committing to the needed seismic work in San Pablo, Mr. Sloan would not make any promises, saying only that Tenet wasn’t the owner.  They didn’t say that they were even working with the owners to deal with the problem.

If they are allowed to close Pinole and then pull out of San Pablo, West County will only have 50 acute care beds instead of the more than 300 that exist now.

The county recommended a set of mitigations that could help offset potential problems arising from the ER closure.  Tenet is not implementing most of those recommendations.  The California Department of Health Services claims that they do not have the statutory authority to require the mitigation.  We need better laws like AB 421 that give local authorities more say in assuring emergency services in our community.

Most of Tenet’s revenues come from public programs like Medicare and Medi-cal.  As taxpayers, we demand that Tenet be held accountable to the communities that have paid for the facilities it now controls.

Please exercise your authority and request that Tenet delay this closure, at the very least, until the replacement ICU beds are available.

SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Thank you.  Next Witness.

MS. TRICIA HUNTER:  I’m Tricia Hunter, on behalf of the American Nurses Association, California, and again, putting in our thanks to the chairman for holding this hearing, and what we also view as a very critical issue.  I just wanted to add a couple of points, definitely supporting those comments that have already been made, but add a couple of things that haven’t been talked about.

One of the issues with reimbursement problems in the emergency room is that many of the cases are out-patient; the reimbursement issue is on an out-patient basis.  And as you know, there has been a long-term lawsuit about that.  Out-patient fees have not been raised for many, many years, in particular, with Medi-cal and that the reimbursement rate is way below what most people now believe is the cost.  And that’s one of the big issues that are going to have to be looked at in providing enough dollars for the out-patient area.

We also hope, as the committee moves forward with this issue, that they would look at all the definitions of emergency room, because we believe there needs to be some more variances of what is between a full emergency room versus an urgent care.  That maybe there could be alternatives to having a neurosurgeon or cardiac surgeon available in 15 minutes if you have the ability to get in a helicopter and fly somebody out.  And so that there could be some changes within the criteria for emergency room, to allow more types of emergency room, to provide it more services instead of the very costly, extreme to the urgent care at the other end.  And so we would hope that’s some of the things the committee would look at.

And then in the old days it used to be that if you were going to be on a medical staff of a hospital, that part of that mandate was that you would be on one of the panels.  But as the different hospitals have shut down their emergency rooms, you doctors now have a choice of going someplace where they don’t have to be 24-hours on-call, have every weekend and every holiday covered because you can go to hospitals that don’t have emergency rooms, and not have to do that kind of coverage.  And so that’s one of the major changes in, I think, having physicians available, let alone the fact that managed care has really cut down on a number of specialists that are being utilized.  We used to have hearings about whether or not there were too many specialists.  Well, we’re cutting down on the specialists available in the state, but in so doing so, they’re also not available for these panels and for 24-hour call at hospitals.  And I think, very rightfully so, the chairman has zeroed in the issue of reimbursement, as one of the major problems.

SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Well, I think that maybe I would -- I need to get more information as to whether, in fact, if we do have specialists -- I tend to believe we have plenty of specialists, they just don’t want to show up.  That’s the difference from there being a shortage of specialists.

MS. HUNTER:  I would say that that’s probably true in many communities, but I will also argue in some communities it’s just the opposite.  That there are some communities that there’s a long distance before --

SENATOR ESCUTIA:  No.  I could understand that.  Yes, that there may be a shortage of specialists because of geographical considerations, but I would tend to believe that the other aspect is also true.  They are out there, but they just don’t want to show up.  It’s not profitable for them to show up.

MS. HUNTER:  Both are true.

SENATOR ESCUTIA:  As a matter of fact, Senator Speier and I will be having a hearing, I think, next week.  A joint hearing to discuss the reimbursement rates for these doctors who are on-call.

Thank you.  The next witness is from the hospital perspective, Melinda Beswick.

MS. HUNTER:  Madam Chair, before they start, may I submit some petitions and letters from the community.  Thank you.

SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Yes.  Please accept those for the records.

MS. MELINDA BESWICK:  Thank you.  My name is Melinda Beswick, and I’m the President of California Hospital Medical Center.  And California Hospital is a 313 bed, acute care hospital __ (inaudible)__.

What I perceived to be some of the causes and effects of hospital emergency room closures.  I am both a clinician, being a licensed registered nurse, here in the state of California, as well as being a hospital administrator of a large inner city hospital with a very busy emergency room, so I can tell you that I definitely appreciate the concerns that have precipitated the legislative approach that’s being considered.  I think it’s frightening to all of us when we are faced with the reality that certain services that we have come to depend upon, like our emergency rooms, are no longer going to be available to us, and I can tell you that I am as frustrated and dismayed by the environment that’s created this crisis as most of the people who have come before me.  But unfortunately, the answer to the crisis does not lie in legislating that a hospital must continue to operate its service that it’s determined it can no longer operate.  Quite frankly, and I use this example very carefully, it is my feeling that our healthcare system, here in California, and perhaps throughout the country, is on life support, and that basically, the equipment is wearing out, and the people running the codes, the doctors, the nurses, the hospital administrators, are in great danger of losing the battle to keep the resuscitation going, and there are many factors that have brought us to this point today.


Just a little bit of history about California Hospital.  We are not a stranger to the specter of emergency department downgrades and closures.  And in fact, California Hospital may have been one of the very first of the linchpin hospitals that considered downgrading and closure of its emergency department back in the mid 1980s.  This occurred because of several factors that were occurring simultaneously.  One, was the move toward prospective payment.  The increasing encroachment of managed care, at that point in time, and the changing demographics of our service area, all of which were occurring simultaneously.


California Hospital was one of the first hospitals in Los Angeles that joined the fledgling trauma system that was being developed in the mid 80s.  It was the first of the private hospitals to resign from that system after incurring losses in the range of $5 - $6 million the first year of operation.  And then, often withdrawing from that trauma center system, then a decision had to be looked at as to whether the hospital could continue to operate as a basic emergency room, or if it needed to downgrade to standby, or close its emergency room entirely.  Needless to say, this precipitated the type of crisis that we’re talking about here, because what happened in California acted on its desire to downgrade, was that all of the other hospitals in the immediate vicinity determined that they would do the same thing.  So what would have happened had this been taken to its end, would have been that there would have been no emergency service available to the people in the Central City of Los Angeles at that point.  Fortunately, the Department of Health Services did step in and did provide financial support so that California was able to continue its role as a basic emergency room, and has continued to do so up to this time.  I think one of the keys here that we keep hearing over and over again, it relates to reimbursement, the ability to pay for the services that are being provided.


Hospital emergency departments are expensive services.  The staffing levels have to be adequate to manage the volume of patients that are expected to come in.  In our hospital we see over 44,000 visits a year through our emergency room.  Staff have to be highly trained.  They have to be competent to address any medical condition or crisis that can happen.  In addition to that, the department and staff in the emergency room have to be supported by other services and staff in the acute care hospital environment.


For California Hospital, the support cost for emergency services alone totaled almost $4 million a year, and this is mostly in the form of indigent support subsidies for call panel physicians, 24-hour availability of critical physicians services, such as anesthesia, and for the physicians staffing the emergency department, itself.  And I will get to that a little bit later with specifics.


Through a combination of various financial supports, including the DHS intervention in the mid 80s, disproportionate share, California has been able to maintain its level of services since the mid 1980s, and hopefully we will continue to do so.  But I need to tell you, that I have many sleepless nights wondering if my hospital is going to be able to stay open, much less provide emergency services.


There is no financial stability that’s within the hospital community, and certainly not in communities such as the one in which hospitals, like California Hospital, operates.  It’s in our communities that often we are highly dependent on the availability of quality emergency services, because often, the people in our areas lack access to basic primary care services.  It was interesting that you asked the question about whether or not that we had seen a decrease in emergency visits.  As we have emphasized, growth of our primary care services, I think we can’t keep up with the growth of the population, and the growth of the uninsured, and the sure growth of the problems in the community.  And so, while we’ve increased access to primary care services, we have eliminated the need for the continuation of the emergency services.


Our financial instability in the healthcare system is the result of years of inadequately funded healthcare for hospitals and physicians alike.  And this has been exacerbated by BBA.  We all knew it would, but I think, like everybody else, we kept hoping it wouldn’t be as bad as it’s actually turned out to be.


For California, this sounds fairly small, but we have such a small Medicare paramix, that the number is misleading.  But we are losing, as a result of BBA, about $1.5 million in reimbursement a year, so you add that over the five-year period.  And then in addition to that, as you know, disproportionate share continues to decrease as a result of BBA.  So those are decreases that we experience.  Then, in terms of Medi-cal for reimbursing emergency services, we get about 40 cents on the cost dollar for emergency service, and our physicians get even less than that.  What happens when your physicians get less is that you’re faced -- the hospital is faced with attempting to bridge a physician’s shortfall.  And the managed care environment in California has also played a large role in bringing our system to its knees, and I’d say this whether it’s the commercial enrollment, the senior enrollment, or the Medi-cal enrollment.  And I’ve frequently heard it said by people, especially those outside of our industry, that managed care rates must be adequate, or hospitals and physicians would not accept them.  And I’m here to tell you that this is absolutely not the case, and if you’ll bear with me, I’ll explain a little bit about that.


The health plans have grown so powerful that they can, and often do, move business from one facility or provider to another without any thought or consideration for those affected.  The lowest price is all that counts, and we’re all threatened and played off against one another with regularity and usually with great success on part of the health plan.  Physicians who don’t play ball have seen their practices literally disappear -- at lunch, with one of my physicians last week, who was talking to me about seeing his practice disappear and having to relocate a couple of years ago -- Hospitals that don’t play ball lose large patient volumes, but they still may be faced with providing essential services to the community -- emergency services being an excellent example.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Let me stop you right there.  When you say that hospitals who don’t play ball, what do you mean by that exactly?


MS. BESWICK:  If you are unwilling to accept the rates that you are presented.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Okay.  And it’s obviously on a take-it-or-leave-it basis.  There’s not negotiation going on?


MS. BESWICK:  No.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  All right.


MS. BESWICK:  So, in short, we have all been accepting what is a dismal reimbursement, because, basically, we have no control over the patient population.  The health plan does.  And no matter how good your services might be, or how eccentral for the overall community, the lowest price is what wins.  It’s the way of things in our highly penetrated managed care environment.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Let me ask you a question.  Is the Medi-cal reimbursement rate, say for, ER docs, higher and lower than that being provided by some of the plans?


MS. BESWICK:  At this point in time, they’re probably equivalent.  They’ve probably reached that point.  But I think the ER physicians will be in a position to tell you that specifically.


But I want to talk to you a little bit about something else.  You’ll hear from them, as well.  Because getting paid at all, even with the low rates, has become a game with many of the plans and with the delegated medical groups.  The accounts receivable for hospitals and providers has grown exponentially as Medi-cal has moved into the managed care environment.  An authorization for services to be provided may not be an authorization at all.  Responsibility for the authorization is often bounced among the plan, the group, or the individual provider after the fact.  This can take months to resolve.  In the meantime, no one is getting paid.  Additionally, some health plans will seemingly try any, and all, techniques to drag out claims payment, requiring endless submissions of the claim and copies of the medical record before they will pay, if they pay.  Delegated provider groups are often even slower to pay than are the health plans themselves.  And often this is because they lack the capital to actually assume payer responsibility, and they are simply trying to protect their internal cash flow.  And this can be particularly burdensome to the ED physician groups who must see the patients regardless of ability to pay, but who all to often have no hope of getting paid or who may finally be paid pennies on the dollar.  And that is certainly true of the group that staffs my emergency department.  A good example of this is a large medical group currently in Los Angeles County that has not paid its external provider since September of 1999.  Hospitals then have to decide if, and how, they can, or must, support their emergency room physicians so that emergency services can continue to be available.  Currently, California Hospital provides over $650,000 in annual indigent financial support to the ED Physician Group with which we contract, and that’s to support them even though in the past year they have had to take a decrease in their reimbursement for a physician, and there have been months when it was doubtful when they would make their payroll.


I want to move onto say that also there is an implication in terms of 

SB 1953, because at this point in time, it’s been projected that the hospitals in California will have to spend over $24 billion statewide to address SB 1953 requirements, and that’s more than the current hospital assets are actually worth.  So when people are making decisions about whether they are going to maintain hospitals or keep emergency departments open, you can be assured that this is one of the things that’s factoring into that decision making.  It is not an easy decision to make.


I need to note that the crisis that’s associated with hospitals actually being able to insure their availability of physician services if they do chose to continue these services, and that relates to the call panel issue.  Hospitals that operate emergency departments -- this has already been noted -- or mandated to provide services to any person, there is no mandate for physicians to participate in the provision of these services.


Hospitals in California cannot employ physicians to provide these services because of regulations prohibiting the corporate practice of medicine.  So that is not a fix.  The physicians in private practice generally have little to gain and much to lose by participating on ED call panels.  Some specialists, such as ENT, Opthamology, and plastics, these are generally office space practices now.  They don’t even have to have hospital privileges, so there’s really no incentive to make them participate on ED call panels.  And those are the people that frequently you need as specialists for people who present to your emergency departments.  Orthopedists have faced too many lawsuits, and their malpractice coverage is cost-prohibitive when then participate on call panels.


Faced with a hospital specific mandate to participate on ED call panels, as has already been stated, many physicians will simply find it advantageous to move their practices to less onerous environments, or just not have hospital privileges.


Physicians need incentives to participate on ED call panels.  They need adequate reimbursement.  They need litigation protection.  And the burden needs to be universally and/or fairly distributed and not borne just by those physicians who are committed to practice in an under-served community, because that is what’s happened if it would not be universally applied.


At California, we pay large dollars each year to attempt to ensure specialty coverage.  We pay over $225,000 a year for neurosurgery coverage alone.  We are one of the few hospitals in the central city that provides neuro coverage and I have to tell you it’s quite a stretch for us.  We pay over a million dollars to various other specialties.  And even so, we cannot guarantee, currently, the ready availability of ENT, GU, or Opthamology for our emergency department.


Frankly, we need your help if we’re going to survive hospitals or emergency departments.  And we can’t absorb any additional unfunded mandates. There’s no place to go.  We would like to work with you to ensure the availability of quality healthcare to the people of California and I think that you can see, that as hospitals, we do care about our communities, we’ve stretched and we’ve marshaled our resources, sometimes not understood, but we’ve done it as much as we can for the last 20 years.


And now, to get back to my original thought, our patient appears to be in danger of straight-lining unless we can work with you to establish an adequate funding stream to maintain the healthcare services in this state.


You had asked if there were any solutions or alternatives to AB 421, I don’t know for a fact that there is, but I would draw your attention to 

AB 2611 that’s being put forward by Assemblyman Gallegos, as a mechanism by which the healthcare community and the Legislature might be able to work together to begin to address this very critical issue.  Thank you very much.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Thank you.  Any further witnesses?  Our last panel is Gil Martinez, from the Department of Health Services and Marilyn Pearman, from Licensing and Certification, also the Department of Health Services.  Mr. Martinez.


MR. GIL MARTINEZ:  Good afternoon, Madam Chair and members of the Senate.  And thank you for inviting the Department of Health Services this afternoon.  I am a district manager for the Department of Health Services Licensing and Certification Division.  My district is the Berkeley district office which covers Alameda and Contra Costa Counties.  Doctor’s Hospital in Pinole is the facility that has given us notice that they would be closing their emergency room in the near future.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  So once you get that notice, what do you do?


MR. MARTINEZ:  We look at the notice to look at the timetables as to when the facility will be closing.  The necessary steps that were provided under the Gallegos bill, the 2103, are being followed.  We have a procedure that’s pretty much like a recipe that we follow and look at when this facility announced that it would be closing its emergency room.  And the procedures, the steps that the hospital took, were in compliance with our prescriptive steps.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  And what were those prescriptive steps?


MR. MARTINEZ:  That they would give 90-day notice to the department and to other agencies within Contra Costa County and affected areas.  That they would have a public education program for users of that area of the hospital.  That they would work cooperatively with the local entity, whether it be the Emergency Medical Services System, or some other county agency, in compiling an Impact Evaluation Report.  And they would have a public hearing prior to the closure of the emergency room.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Is there anything within your authority that would cause you not to give them the permission to close?


MR. MARTINEZ:  The Health and Safety Code statute in question does not give the department statutory authority to deny the closure.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Okay.  All right.


MR. MARTINEZ:  In any case, if you do want to have, or members of the Senate wish to have a copy of the procedure, I can leave it here for you.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Yes.  Please.


MR. MARTINEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  The impact -- that’s it?  That’s your testimony?


MR. MARTINEZ:  No.  I’m open for questions.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  The impact evaluation that you have the hospital do, what’s in that impact evaluation?


MS. MARILYN PEARMAN:  Actually, if I can answer that.  I’m Marilyn Pearman from the Department of Health Services.  The provisions of the impact evaluation are specified in AB 2103, the Gallegos bill, and the statute is very clear as to what needs to be done.  It’s actually done at the local level.  We don’t do that.  The hospital works with the local Emergency Medical Services Authority to talk about what kind of impact that will have to the community.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  So they finish gathering their data, the information to do this impact evaluation, and then they submit that evaluation to you, right?


MS. PEARMAN:  Right.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  And after that, what happens with that evaluation?


MS. PEARMAN:  We review the evaluation.  However, I would note to you that the statute only requires that we receive it.  It does not give us any guidance at all, or any authority to use that impact evaluation.  But we do, in fact, and in the case of this particular hospital, was to begin meeting with them to talk about -- trying to mitigate the impact to the community.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Okay.  So you’ve got an impact evaluation that has gone through all the proper information.  It’s filed with your agency.  You look at it and if there’s something there that’s really glaring like, “Oh gee, this hospital should not close,” you will still go forward with the closure because you have no authority right now to prevent the closure.


MS. PEARMAN:  Correct.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  All right.  Do you have any additional testimony?


MS. PEARMAN:  No.  I will mention though, that from our perspective, we did meet with the hospital and attempt to get them to stay open longer while other beds were made available in the community, which doesn’t answer some of the concerns you heard today of location and those sorts of things, but to also to get them to stay open longer hours and to gather more data on the use of their facility’s urgent care center, to make some services available to the county.  But to be honest with you, that is merely us asking them to do that as a service to the community.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Let me ask you a question which I’m not sure you can answer.  Does the Department of Health Services want the authority to prevent closures?


MS. PEARMAN:  I don’t know that we’re prepared to answer that at this time.  I think, the many questions that have been brought up today about what do you do about funding?  What happens if we told them they had to stay open and they couldn’t get the physicians or the nurses?  A lot of those issues of health planning have not been a part of either the Department of Health Services or the Legislature, or any other body in California, for many, many years.  The old certificate of need process, which was when hospitals had to go to the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development and show that there was a need before they could build a hospital was the last health planning entity that took place in this state.  Whether or not we wanted, like I said, I can’t answer that.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Now when you told us that you were with the Licensing and Certification Division, licensing of what?


MS. PEARMAN:  Hospitals and health facilities.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Not the hospital plans, right?  That’s a different bureaucracy.  The Department of Corporations.


MS. PEARMAN:  Right.  Exactly.  The Department of Corporations is over health plans.  However, their Department of Health Services has a part that’s separate from where Gil and I work that does the managed care for Medi-cal and the Medi-cal reimbursement.  And as you’ve heard today, there are a lot of reimbursement issues.  A lot of issues as to what is the level that a community needs?  What kind of services need to be available, and who can pay for those, or should pay for them, that are really probably not totally within the Department of Health Services realm due to the fact that the Department of Insurance, the Department of Corporations, Office of Statewide Planning and Development, the State Emergency Medical Services Authority, as well as local ones, also play a role in this whole issue of proper level of emergency room care.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Has there ever been any kind of an interdisciplinary approach to this problem, some kind of a task force by which members from your agency, people from another agency, they all, kind of, get together go on a retreat, brainstorm and come up with an answer?


MS. PEARMAN:  We actually did put together a task force at Licensing and Certification because of the concerns that were raised a couple years ago.  We worked with all the groups I just mentioned, as well as some others, to talk about some of the issues and came up with, sort of, a laundry list of issues that were concerns that we had seen.  However, like other people who spoke to you today, there are more questions at this point, than there are answers.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Back to your authority in licensing, what comes first, licensing or certification?


MS. PEARMAN:  Licensing.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  All right.  When a hospital comes to you to seek their license, do you have the authority to tell them, “Okay, we’ll give you your license as long as you promise that you will keep the emergency room open?”


MS. PEARMAN:  No.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  They don’t have that authority?


MS. PEARMAN:  No.  The statute actually, which was, of course, enacted by the Legislature, specifies what basic services that a hospital must have to be licensed in California.  It does not include emergency room services.  Now, certainly, you have the authority to change that list of required services, but we do not have the authority to mandate anything other than what is provided for in statute.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  And the same can be said for the certification process, that you don’t have the authority to deny certification if emergency room services are not provided?


MS. PEARMAN:  Correct.  Certification is a federal program that allows them to have reimbursement for Medicare and Medicaid, in California, called Medi-cal.  And no, under the federal definition, you can be a hospital without having emergency room services, and therefore, you are entitled to Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Help me along here since I wasn’t around.  When was the statute, that you’re talking about, enacted?


MS PEARMAN:  The one for the eight basic services that a hospital --


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Yes.  Obviously before 1992, right?


MS. PEARMAN:  It’s a little bit before my time.


MR. MARTINEZ:  Thank you.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Maybe there may be a need to revisit that issue.  All right.  I thank you for coming.


MS. PEARMAN:  Your welcome.


MR. MARTINEZ:  Thank you.


SENATOR ESCUTIA:  Thank you, everybody, for coming to this informational hearing.  Hearing no other questions from members -- it’s a challenge and I expect everybody to try to come with a systemic solution.  Thank you so much.  The hearing will adjourn.
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